
 

Rotherhithe Community Council 
Planning 

 
Wednesday 4 April 2012 

7.00 pm 
Ground Floor Meeting Room G02B - 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH 

 
Membership 
 

 

Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair) 
Councillor Wilma Nelson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Lisa Rajan 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Eleanor Kelly 
Acting Chief Executive 
Date: Tuesday 27 March 2012 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title  

 

  

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 The chair to advise whether they have agreed to any items of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title  
 
 

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 

 

5. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 7) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 15 
February 2012. 
 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT ITEMS (Pages 8 - 12) 
 

 

6.1. 7-14 RUBY TRIANGLE, SANDGATE STREET, LONDON, SE15 
1LE (Pages 13 - 31) 

 

 

   
 
Date:  Tuesday 27 March 2012 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 7187 or 
email: tim.murtagh@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7234.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Rotherhithe Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7234 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7234 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

Arabic:

020 7525 7234Tooley Street 160
LondonSE1 2TZ

Portuguese:

Necessidades de Linguagem
Se você gostaria de informação sobre Community Councils (Concelhos
Comunitários) traduzida para sua língua, por favor, telefone para 020 7525 7234
ou visite os oficiais em 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7234 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Polish:

adresem 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

2



Cantonese:

020 7525 7234 160

Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Turkish:

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7234 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

3



  
Planning at Community Council Meetings 
  
This sheet will tell you about what happens at the meeting when the 
community council considers a planning application, a planning enforcement 
case or other planning proposals. 
 
 
The community council must follow the same rules and procedures as the council’s 
main planning committee. 
 
The items are heard in the order printed on the agenda, but the chair may change the 
running order of the items. 
  
 
At the start of each item, the council’s planning officer will present the report about 
the planning application and answer points raised by Members of the committee. 
After this, the following people may speak on the application if they wish, but not 
more than 3 minutes each: 
 
 
1. A representative (spokesperson) for the objectors - if there is more than one 

objector wishing to speak the time is then divided within the 3 minute time slot. 
 
2. The applicant or their agent 
 
3. A representative for any supporters who live within 100 metres of the 

development site 
 
4. A ward councillor from where the proposal is located.  
 
 
The chair will ask the speakers to come forward to speak. Once the speaker’s three 
minutes have elapsed, members of the committee may ask questions of them, 
relevant to the roles and functions of the community council. 
 
Members of the committee will then debate the application and consider the 
recommendation. 
 
Note 
If there are several objectors or supporters, they have to identify a representative 
who will speak on their behalf. If more than one person wishes to speak, the 3 minute 
time allowance must be shared amongst those who wish to speak. Objectors may 
wish to meet with other objectors in the foyer of the hall prior to the start of the 
meeting to appoint a representative.   
 
Speakers should restrict their comments to the planning aspects of the proposal and 
should avoid repeating what is already on the report. 
 
The arrangements at the meeting may be varied at the discretion of the Chair.  

 

 

 

4



1 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 15 February 2012 
 

 
 
 
 

ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
- Planning – 

 
MINUTES of the Rotherhithe Community Council held on Wednesday 15 February 
2012 at 7.00 pm at Ground Floor Meeting Room G01B - 160 Tooley Street, London 
SE1 2QH  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor David Hubber 

Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Lisa Rajan 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

  
OFFICER 
SUPPORT: 

  
Vikki Lewis, Senior Planning Officer 
Susannah Petit, Senior Planning Officer 
Suzan Yildiz, Senior Planning Lawyer 
Tim Murtagh, Constitutional Team 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME 
 

 

 At the start of the meeting, in the absence of the chair and vice chair, Councillor David 
Hubber was nominated and seconded to be chair for the meeting.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 
 That Councillor David Hubber chair the meeting. 
 

2. APOLOGIES 
 

 

 There were apologies for absence from Councillor Jeff Hook. 
 

3. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT 
 

 

 There were none. 

Agenda Item 5
5



2 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 15 February 2012 
 

 

4. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS 
 

 

 There were none. 
 

5. MINUTES 
 

 

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting held on 19 January 2012 be agreed as a correct 
record and signed by the chair. 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT ITEMS 
 

 

6.1 OPEN SPACE BEHIND FLORENCE HOUSE AND THE LINKS COMMUNITY CENTRE, 
BETWEEN ROTHERHITHE NEW ROAD AND RYDER DRIVE, LONDON SE16  

 

 Report: See pages 13 to 24 of the agenda 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Refurbishment of under 8 years play area comprising the installation of metal climber with 
slide, rope net, metal see-saw and spring toy on green rubber crumb surfacing with 
associated bench, litter bin and two new gates in existing perimeter railing. 
 
The planning officer presented the application and councillors asked questions of the 
planning officer. 
 
There were no statements from objectors. 
 
The applicant’s agent made a statement and councillors asked questions. 
 
There were no statements from local supporters of the application living within 100 metres 
of the site, or from ward councillors. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That application 11-AP-2306 be approved, subject to the conditions set out in the 
report. 

 

6.2 67-105 ORMSIDE STREET, LONDON, SE15 1TF  
 

 Report: See pages 25 to 41 of the agenda 
 
PROPOSAL 
 
Retrospective application for the change of use from light industry (Class B1) to a storage 

6



3 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Wednesday 15 February 2012 
 

and logistics yard (Class B8) to support the Blackfriars Station redevelopment, associated 
temporary single storey building and boundary treatment. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
 That the wording of amended condition 3 and new condition 4 for       
            application 11-AP-2618, agreed at the 19 January 2012 meeting was as  
            follows: 
 

3. The use hereby permitted for storage and logistics yard within    
    B8 use class purposes shall not be carried on outside of the   
    hours 08:00 to 21:00 on Monday to Saturday or 09:00 to 19:00   
    on Sundays and Bank Holidays on any part of the site. 
 
4. The southern gate accessing Manor Grove shall not be used in        
    connection with the permitted use outside of the following hours:  
    Mon-Fri 08:00 - 18:00, Sat 08:00 - 13:00, and on Sundays and  
    Bank Holidays the southern gate shall not be used at all. 

 

 The meeting ended at 7.25pm 
 
 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 

7



 

 

 
 

 

Item No.  
6. 

Classification: 
Open  

Date: 
4 April 2012 

Meeting Name: 
Rotherhithe Community 
Council 
 

Report title: 
 

Development Management 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

All 

From: 
 

Deputy Chief Executive 

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the determination of planning applications, or formal observations and 

comments, the instigation of enforcement action and the receipt of the reports 
included in the attached items be considered. 

 
2. That the decisions made on the planning applications be subject to the conditions 

and/or made for the reasons set out in the attached reports unless otherwise 
stated. 

 
3. That where reasons for decisions or conditions are not included or not as included 

in the reports relating to an individual item, they be clearly specified. 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 
4 The council’s powers to consider planning business are detailed in Part 3F 

which describes the role and functions of the planning committee and Part 3H 
which describes the role and functions of community councils.  These were 
agreed by the annual meeting of the council on 19 May 2010 and amended on 
20 October 2010. The matters reserved to the planning committee and 
community councils exercising planning functions are described in parts 3F and 
3H of the Southwark Council constitution. These functions were delegated to the 
planning committee. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
5. In respect of the attached planning committee items members are asked, where 

appropriate - 
 
6. To determine those applications in respect of site(s) within the borough, subject 

where applicable, to the consent of the Secretary of State for Communities and 
Local Government and any directions made by the Mayor of London. 

 
7. To give observations on applications in respect of which the council is not the 

planning authority in planning matters but which relate to site(s) within the 
borough, or where the site(s) is outside the borough but may affect the amenity of 
residents within the borough. 

 

Agenda Item 6
8



 

 

 
 

 

8. To receive for information any reports on the previous determination of 
applications, current activities on site, or other information relating to specific 
planning applications requested by members. 

 
9. Each of the following items are preceded by a map showing the location of the 

land/property to which the report relates.  Following the report, there is a draft 
decision notice detailing the officer's recommendation indicating approval or 
refusal.  Where a refusal is recommended the draft decision notice will detail the 
reasons for such refusal.   

 
10. Applicants have the right to appeal to Planning Inspector against a refusal of   

planning permission and against any condition imposed as part of permission.  
Costs are incurred in presenting the Councils case at appeal which maybe 
substantial if the matter is dealt with at a public inquiry. 

 
11. The sanctioning of enforcement action can also involve costs such as process 

serving, court costs and of legal representation. 
 
12. Where either party is felt to have acted unreasonably in an appeal the inspector 

can make an award of costs against the offending party. 
 
13. All legal/Counsel fees and costs as well as awards of costs against the council are 

borne by the regeneration and neighbourhood’s budget. 
 
Community impact statement 
 
14         Community impact considerations are contained within each item. 
 

 SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 
 

 Strategic Director of Communities, Law & Governance 
 
15. A resolution to grant planning permission shall mean that the development & 

building control manager is authorised to grant planning permission.  The 
resolution does not itself constitute the permission and only the formal document 
authorised by the committee and issued under the signature of the development & 
building control manager shall constitute a planning permission.  Any additional 
conditions required by the committee will be recorded in the minutes and the final 
planning permission issued will reflect the requirements of the planning 
committee.  

 
16. A resolution to grant planning permission subject to legal agreement shall mean 

that the development & building control manager is authorised to issue a 
planning permission subject to the applicant and any other necessary party 
entering into a written agreement in a form of words prepared by the strategic 
director of legal and democratic services, and which is satisfactory to the 
development & building control manager.  Developers meet the council's legal 
costs of such agreements.  Such an agreement shall be entered into under 
section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 or under another 
appropriate enactment as shall be determined by the strategic director of legal 
& democratic services.  The planning permission will not be issued unless such 

9



 

 

 
 

 

an agreement is completed. 
 

17. Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended requires 
the council to have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as 
material to the application, and to any other material considerations when 
dealing with applications for planning permission. Where there is any conflict 
with any policy contained in the development plan, the conflict must be resolved 
in favour of the policy which is contained in the last document to be adopted, 
approved or published, as the case may be (s38(5) Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004).   

 
18. Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 provides that 

where, in making any determination under the planning Acts, regard is to be 
had to the development plan, the determination shall be made in accordance 
with the plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The 
development plan is currently Southwark's Core Strategy adopted by the 
council in April 2011, saved policies contained in the Southwark Plan 2007, the 
Where there is any conflict with any policy contained in the development plan, 
the conflict must be resolved in favour of the policy which is contained in the 
last document to be adopted, approved or published, as the case may be 
(s38(5) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).   

 
19. On 15 January 2012 section 143 of the Localism Act 2011 came into force 

which provides that local finance considerations (such as government grants 
and other financial assistance such as New Homes Bonus) and monies 
received through CIL (including the Mayoral CIL) are a  material consideration 
to be taken into account in the determination of planning applications in 
England. However, the weight to be attached to such matters remains a matter 
for the decision-maker. 

 
20. Government policy on planning obligations is contained in the Office of the Deputy 

Prime Minister Circular 05/2005.  Provisions of legal agreements must fairly and 
reasonably relate to the provisions of the development plan and to planning 
considerations affecting the land.  The obligation must also be such as a 
reasonable planning authority, duly appreciating its statutory duties can properly 
impose, i.e. it must not be so unreasonable that no reasonable authority could 
have imposed  it.  Before resolving to grant planning permission subject to a legal 
agreement members should therefore satisfy themselves that the subject matter 
of the  proposed agreement will meet these tests. From 6 April 2010 the 
Community Infrastructure Levy regulations (CIL) have given these policy tests 
legal force. 

 
Regulation 122 provides that “a planning obligation may only constitute a 
reason for granting planning permission if the obligation is: 

 a.   necessary to make to the development acceptable in planning terms; 
 b.   directly related to the development; and 
 c.   fairly and reasonably related to the scale and kind to the development.” 
 

10



 

 

 
 

 

20. Government policy on planning obligations is contained in the Office of the Deputy 
Prime Minister Circular 05/2005.  Provisions of legal agreements must fairly and 
reasonably relate to the provisions of the development plan and to planning 
considerations affecting the land.  The obligation must also be such as a 
reasonable planning authority, duly appreciating its statutory duties can properly 
impose, i.e. it must not be so unreasonable that no reasonable authority could 
have imposed it.  Before resolving to grant planning permission subject to a legal 
agreement members should therefore satisfy themselves that the subject matter 
of the proposed agreement will meet these tests. 

 
21. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) is intended to bring together 

Planning Policy Statements, Planning Policy Guidance Notes and some Circulars 
into a single consolidated document. It is a consultation document and therefore 
may be subject to potential amendment. It is capable of being a material 
consideration, although the weight to be given to it is a matter for the decisions-
maker. The current Planning Policy Statements, Guidance notes and Circulars 
remain in place until cancelled. 

 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Council Assembly Agenda June 27 
2007 and Council Assembly Agenda 
January 30 2008 

Constitutional Team 
Communities, Law & 
Governance  
2nd Floor 160 Tooley 
Street 
PO Box 64529  
London SE1 5LX 
 

Kenny Uzodike  
020 7525 7236 

Each planning committee item has a 
separate planning case file 

Council Offices, 5th Floor 
160 Tooley Street, 
London SE1 2TZ 

The named case 
Officer as listed or 
Gary Rice 
020 7525 5437 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11



 

 

 
 

 

 
AUDIT TRAIL 
  
Lead Officer Deborah Collins, Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 

Governance  
Report Author Nagla Stevens, Principal Planning Lawyer  

Kenny Uzodike, Constitutional Officer 
Version Final 
Dated 7 February 2012 
Key Decision No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET 

MEMBER 
Officer Title Comments 

sought 
Comments 
included 

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance  

Yes Yes 

Deputy Chief Executive No No 
Head of Development Management No No 
 

12



 
ITEMS ON AGENDA OF THE ROTHERHITHE CC 

on Wednesday 04 April 2012 

7-14 RUBY TRIANGLE, SANDGATE STREET, LONDON, SE15 1LE Site 
Full Planning Permission Appl. Type 

Erection of extensions at ground and first floor level, window and door alterations to elevations and alterations to gates and fencing to 
front of site in connection with use of ground floor as an industrial unit (Use Class B1, B2 or B8) and use of first floor as a unit for 
place of worship and community facilities (Use Class D1) and change of use of part of the ground floor to provide access and 
emergency egress from proposed first floor for proposed community facility. Works include installation of  4 A/C units to roof of 
first floor extension. 

Proposal 

11-AP-2521 Reg. No. 
TP/2360-B TP No. 
Livesey Ward 
Daniel Davies Officer 

REFUSE PERMISSION Recommendation Item 6.1 

13



S
ca

le
 1

/1
25

0

D
at

e 
23

/3
/2

01
2

7-
14

 R
U

B
Y

 T
R

IA
N

G
L

E
, S

A
N

D
G

A
T

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
, L

O
N

D
O

N
, S

E
15

 1
L

E

A
D

©
 C

ro
w

n 
co

py
rig

ht
. A

ll 
rig

ht
s 

re
se

rv
ed

 (
(0

)1
00

01
92

52
) 

20
09

O
rd

na
nc

e 
S

ur
ve

y

Agenda Item 6.1
14



Item No.  
 

6.1 
 
  

Classification:   
 
Open 
 

Date: 
 
4 April 2012 
 

Meeting Name:  
 
Rotherhithe Community Council 

Report title:  
 
 

Development Management planning application:   
Application 11-AP-2521 for: Full Planning Permission 
 
Address:  
7-14 RUBY TRIANGLE, SANDGATE STREET, LONDON, SE15 1LE 
 
Proposal:  
Erection of extensions at ground and first floor level, window and door 
alterations to elevations and alterations to gates and fencing to front of site 
in connection with use of ground floor as an industrial unit (Use Class B1, 
B2 or B8) and use of first floor as a unit for place of worship and community 
facilities (Use Class D1) and change of use of part of the ground floor to 
provide access and emergency egress from proposed first floor for 
proposed community facility. Works include installation of  4 A/C units to 
roof of first floor extension.  
 

Ward(s) or  
groups  
affected:  

Livesey 

From:  Head of Development Management 
 

Application Start Date  22 December 2011 Application Expiry Date  16 February 2012 
 

 
 

 RECOMMENDATION 
 

1 To refuse planning permission. 
 

 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

2 A Ward Councillor requested that the application be considered by the Rotherhithe 
Community Council, which was agreed by the chair.  
 

 Site location and description 
 

3 
 
 
 
 
4 
 
 
 
 
5 

The site lies to the north-east of the Old Kent Road in the Sandgate industrial estate.  
The property is an industrial building built of brick that has a single-storey element with 
a 2-storey wing attached to its south-east end.  There is a gated forecourt to the front of 
the building. 
 
The building is known to have been used as a church with ancillary offices and 
classrooms since 2003 accommodating a congregation of approximately 120. The 
building faces a triangular traffic island enclosed by carriage ways which take access 
from the industrial estate roads. 
 
The site forms part of a preferred industrial location (PIL), the urban density zone and 
an air quality management area. The building is not listed and is not within a 
conservation area. It is not within a controlled parking zone.  
 

  

15



 Details of proposal 
 

6 
 
 
 
 
7 
 
 
8 
 
 
 
9 
 
 
10 
 
11 
 
 
 
 
12 
 
13 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14 
 
 
15 
 
16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
17 
 
 
 
 
18 
 

The use of the site as a Place of worship and Assembly is unauthorized, and full 
planning permission is sought to retain this use. The applicant intends to relocate the 
church at first floor level through the creation of a first floor extension. The extension 
would be a steel framed, panel construction. 
 
At first floor level, it would provide space for the church and some ancillary  office 
space or alternatively shared studio service space.  
 
The proposal would also extended the building at ground floor level which it is 
proposed would be in reinstated to accommodate commercial (Use Class B1 (Office), 
B2 (general industrial), or B8 (storage and distribution) uses.  
 
The entrance to the church would be located on the left hand side of the building and 
the industrial entrance to the right.   
 
Dimensions of the proposed extensions: 
 
Single-storey front extension (north-west elevation) (Entrance to the industrial unit) 
• Width: 8m wide 
• Depth: 4m (maximum)  
• Height: 3.7m 
 
The structure would have a flat roof.  
 
Two-storey extension front extension (north-west elevation) (Entrance to proposed 
church space):  
 
• Width: 7.95m  
• Depth: 3.450m  
• Height:7m high 
 
The structure would have a flat roof and would be constructed of matching brick with 
contrasting blue / black soldier courses and aluminium framed windows. 
 
Extensions at first floor level: 
 
The first floor extension would comprise two elements.   
 
The first would provide the church assembly hall and would measure 23.5m wide, 
14.6m deep and 3.8m high with a flat roof, constructed of silver coloured aluminium 
panels with aluminium framed windows.  
 
The second element would provide ancillary office space for the industrial unit and 
would measure 6.5m wide, 15.8m deep and 3.1m high with a flat roof.  It would be 
constructed of matching brick with blue/black soldier courses and aluminium framed 
windows. 
 
A number of window and door alterations are proposed; to the front (north-west) 
elevation this would comprise the insertion of 2 painted roller shutter doors at ground 
floor level and insertion of a new timber door, the insertion of 2 timber doors to the rear 
(south-west) elevation of the building at ground floor level and the reinstatement of 2 
windows to the south-east facing elevation.  
 
Alterations to gates and fencing to front of site: 
 

16



19 It is proposed to provide a gated entrance to the church and two gated pedestrian 
entrances to the industrial unit with two off-street parking spaces in between. 

  
 Planning history 

 
20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
21 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

06-EN-0461: Enforcement notice in connection with material change of use of land 
from B12/B2 use class premises to a place of worship and other ancillary uses (Use 
class D1) ("the unauthorized use"). Notice served 16 January 2012. 
 
The enforcement notice was served to protect the Preferred Industrial Location 
designation and due to the traffic impacts of this development. The enforcement notice 
has been appealed, but planning permission for the existing use is not a ground of 
appeal. The appeal is limited to the detail of the requirements needed to comply with 
the enforcement notice. The current unauthorised use will not be permitted, as part of 
this appeal. 
 
Prior to issuing the enforcement notice officers considered that the planning history of 
this site set out below, coupled with the continuing policy designation as a Preferred 
Industrial Location prevented a D class use from being acceptable on this site. 
 
08-AP-3085: Planning permission refused on 6 October 2009 for the erection of 
extensions at ground and first floor level, window and door alterations to elevations and 
alterations to gates and fencing to front of site in connection with use of ground floor as 
an industrial unit (Use Class B1, B2, or B8) and first floor a place of worship and 
community facilities (Use Class D2) and change of use of part of the ground floor to 
provide access and emergency egress from proposed first floor.  
 
The reasons for refusal were that: 
 
1. The proposed development, by virtue of the provision of a D class use in a preferred 
industrial location would be contrary to the provisions of policy 1.2 of the Southwark 
Plan 2007 'Preferred office and industrial locations' which only permits B class uses 
and sui generis class industrial uses which would be unsuitable in residential areas in 
preferred industrial locations. The inclusion of a Class D use would set an undesirable 
precedent making it difficult to resist similar applications in the future, the cumulative 
impact of which would be to undermine the character, and harm the function of the 
industrial area. 
 
2. The proposed development, by virtue of introducing both a B class and a D class 
use into the building would introduce further traffic into the area and would cause harm 
to and conflict between vehicular and pedestrian safety, contrary to policies 5.2 
'Transport impacts' and 5.3 'Walking and cycling' of the Southwark Plan 2007. 
 
04-AP-0227 Planning permission refused for alterations to existing sloping roof to 
create a first floor with new windows and alterations to existing ground floor frontage, 
use of former industrial unit as a place of worship on the ground floor with use of part of 
the ground floor and first floor for storage purposes (B8) and offices (B1). 01/07/2004. 
 
The reasons for refusal were that: 
 
1. The proposal would result in the loss of a Class B industrial building within a 
designated Employment Area, contrary to policy B.1.1 ‘Protection of Employment 
Areas and identified sites’ in the Southwark Unitary Development Plan, and policy 1.3 ‘ 
Strategic and Local Preferred Industrial Locations’ in the Draft Southwark Plan (March 
2004). As such, the proposal is considered to be harmful to the character and 
functioning of the employment area and would be detrimental to employment 
opportunities within the borough. 

17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
23 
 
 
 
 
24 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
25 
 
 
 
 
 
26 
 
 
27 
 
 
28 

 
2. The proposal by reason of car traffic generated would be harmful to the functioning 
of the industrial estate. As such, it is contrary to Policies C.3.2 (New Religious 
Buildings) and T.1.2 (Location of Development in Relation to the Transport Network) of 
the adopted Southwark Unitary Development Plan and policy 2.2 (Provision of 
Communal Facilities) of the draft Southwark Plan (March 2004). 
 
 
03-AP-1991 Planning permission was refused for a proposal to change the use from 
light industrial and construction of an additional floor to provide mixed use scheme 
comprising place of worship, computer training centre, officers and a day care centre. 
The reasons for refusak were that: 
 
1. The proposal would result in the loss of a Class B industrial building within a 
designated Employment Area, contrary to policy B.1.1 'Protection of Employment Areas 
and identified sites' in the Southwark Unitary Development Plan, and Policy 1.4 
'Preferred Industrial Location' in the Draft Southwark Plan (on Deposit Nov. 2002). As 
such, the proposal is considered to be harmful to the character and functioning of the 
employment area and would be detrimental to employment opportunities within the 
borough. 
 
2. The proposal by reason of car traffic generated would be harmful to the functioning 
of the industrial estate.  As such, it is contrary to Policies C.3.2 (New Religious 
Buildings) and T.1.2 (Location of Development in Relation to the Transport Network) of 
the Adopted Southwark Unitary Development Plan and Policy 2.4 (Provision of 
Community Facilities) of the Southwark Plan as agreed for Deposit November 2002. 
 
Appeal against refused planning application 03-AP-1991 dismissed. The Inspector 
found that: 
 
1) the potential of the site to compromise operations on the surrounding industrial area 
by virtue of on-street parking would be contrary to policy 
 
2) the scheme would result in the loss of employment generating use within a the heart 
of an industrial area contrary to policy. 

  
 Planning history of adjoining sites 

 
29 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
30 

25-27 Ruby Street 
03-AP-2424 - Use of premises for religious and community centre together with 
elevational alterations to create a new entrance to the building (renewal of LBS erg. 
9801730).  Planning permission was granted in May 2004. 
 
This is preceeded by: 
 
Planning Permission was granted in July 1997 for the change of to place of worship 
and for educational and community activities with alterations and extension to the front 
and rear of the building.  
 
Planning permission was granted on 19/02/1999 for the use of the premises as 
religious and community centre together with elevational alterations to create a new 
entrance to the building. (Amendment to planning permission dated 23/07/97).  
 
Unit 5, Sandgate Trading Estate 
05-AP-0523 - Alterations to rear section of warehouse by raising roof level to same 
height as 3 storey front section to provide additional  storage space.  Planning 
permission was GRANTED in September 2004. 

18



  
 KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
 Summary of main issues 

 
31 The main issues to be considered in respect of this application are: 

 
a)  the principle of the development in terms of land use and conformity with strategic 
policies; 
 
b) amenity; 
 
c) transport; 
 
d) design 
 
e) flood risk. 

  
 Planning policy 

 
32 Core Strategy 2011 

 
33 Strategic policy 1 (Sustainable Development) 

Strategic policy 2 (Sustainable Transport) 
Strategic policy 4 (Places for learning, enjoyment and healthy lifestyles) 
Strategic policy 10 (Jobs and businesses) 
Strategic policy 12 (Design and conservation) 
Strategic policy 13 (High environmental standards) 
 

  
34 Southwark Plan 2007 (July) - saved policies 

 
35 Policy 1.2  (Strategic and local preferred industrial locations) 

Policy 1.5 (Small business units) 
Policy 2.2 (Provision of new community facilities) 
Policy 3.2 (Protection of amenity) 
Policy 3.4 (Energy efficiency) 
Policy 3.7 (Waste reduction) 
Policy 3.12 (Quality in design) 
Policy 3.13 (Urban design) 
Policy 5.2 (Transport impacts) 
Policy 5.3 (Walking and cycling) 
Policy 5.6 (Car parking) 
Policy 5.7 (Parking standards for disabled people and the mobility impaired) 

  
36 London Plan 2011 

 
37 Policy 2.17 (Strategic Industrial Locations) 

Policy 3.1 (Ensuring Equal Life Chances for All) 
Policy 4.4 (Managing Industrial Land and Premises) 
Policy 4.11 (Encouraging a Connected Economy) 
Policy 6.3 (Assessing Effects of Development on Transport Capacity) 
Policy 6.9 (Cycling) 
Policy 6.12 (Road Network Capacity) 
Policy 6.13 (Parking) 
Policy 7.15 (Reducing Noise and Enhancing Soundscapes) 
 

19



38 Planning Policy Guidance (PPG) and Planning Policy Statements (PPS) 
 

39 PPS1 - Delivering Sustainable Development  
PPG4 - Industrial, Commercial Development and Small Firms 
PPS25: Development and Flood Risk 
 

 The draft National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF): 
The draft National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) was published at the end of July 
2011 for consultation until 17 October 2011.  The Government has set out its 
commitment to a planning system that does everything it can do to support sustainable 
economic growth. Local planning authorities are expected to plan positively for new 
development. All plans should be based on the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development and contain clear policies that will guide how the presumption will be 
applied locally.  
 
The NPPF builds upon the Government's 'Plan for Growth' which was published in 
March 2011. The overall theme of this document is to support long term sustainable 
economic growth and job creation in the UK. This is set out as a clear and current 
Government objective (and accordingly should attract significant weight).  
 

 Principle of development  
 

40 
 
 
 
41 
 
 
 
 
 
42 
 
 
43 
44 
 
 
 
 
 
45 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
46 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Saved Policy 1.2 of the Southwark Plan states that in preferred industrial locations, 
planning permission will only be granted for developments falling within the 'B' use 
class and Sui Generis use class industries which are inappropriate in residential areas. 
 
This proposal has the effect of restoring some B class floor space, which is one of the 
aims of the planning enforcement notice. In comparison to the existing building there 
would be a loss of 37sqm of B class floor space. A similar proposal (08-AP-3085) 
seeking to relocate the unlawful use on site was refused on policy and transport 
grounds at this site. The reasons are set out above under planning history.  
 
There are similar concerns with this proposal, regarding the principle of allowing a D 
class use within a preferred industrial location.  
 
Employment Land Review: 
A review of employment land was completed in 2010 which assessed employment land 
in the borough. The review led to recommendations some of which related to the 
retention of industrial designations in the borough, in particular recommendation 3 
which specifically refers to the retention of the Sandgate Trading Estate of which the 
application site forms part.  
 
There is a need to ensure that demand for ‘B’ use class and ‘Sui Generis’ employment 
generating uses can be accommodated at the most appropriate locations, particularly 
where they cannot be located near residential areas. The application site within a PIL is 
one of these said areas. Planning permission for a D1 use, be it full or temporary would 
seriously undermine the Council’s employment strategy and might conceivably give 
rise to some ‘hope value’ for other D1 uses to locate in what is otherwise a well 
functioning industrial area.  
 
If any unauthorised use were granted planning permission in a Preferred Industrial 
Location it would create an incentive to restrict industrial use of the land so that other 
uses might be bought onto the land such as residential, as well as D1. This would 
create two problems. The first 'Hope Value' potentially inflating land values, which can 
affect new businesses looking to establish. Secondly non industrial uses can restrict 
the use of adjoining land. The earlier D1 permission relates to a time before adoption of 
the Southwark Plan 2007  when policy was less rigourous than at present. At that time 

20



 
 
 
 
 
 
47 
 
 
48 
 
49 
 
 
 
 
 
 
50 
 
 
51 
 
52 
 
 
53 
 
54 
55 

there was more industrial land available. Since that time there has been a significant 
reduction in industrial land. This site is on an industrial estate with a high level of 
occupancy and there is no evidence that this mixed use is required to redevelop the 
site, or that the existing building could not be relet to an industrial use. 
 
New community uses: 
Policy 2.2 of the Southwark Plan states that planning permission will be granted for 
new community facilities provided that: 
 
i) provision is made to enable the facility to be used by all members of the community; 
 
Two parking spaces would be provided at the front of the site which could be secured 
for use by people with disabilities or those with mobility impairments by condition, 
although in this instance there are concerns that the spaces would be too short (refer to 
transport section of this report).  The entrance to the church would have a level 
threshold and there would be a lift in the reception area therefore no objections are 
raised. 
 
ii) the facility is not detrimental to the amenity of present and future occupiers of the 
surrounding area, in compliance with saved policies 3.2 and 5.2; 
 
Refer to amenity section of this report. 
 
iii) where developments will generate more than 20 vehicle trips at any one time a 
transport assessment will be required in compliance with saved policies 3.3 and 5.2. 
 
Refer to the transport section of this report. 
 
Summary: 
Saved Policy 1.2 only permits B class or Sui Generis industries in these locations, and 
to allow a D class use would set an undesirable precedent which would make it difficult 
to resist similar applications in the future, the cumulative impact of which could 
undermine the industrial area. The proposed scheme would conflict with policy and for 
this reason would not be acceptable.   

  
 Environmental impact assessment  

 
56 Not required. 
  
 Impact of proposed development on amenity of adjoining occupiers and 

surrounding area  
 

57 
 
 
58 
 
59 
60 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Saved Policy 3.2 of the Southwark Plan seeks to ensure an adequate standard of 
amenity for present and future occupiers. 
 
Present occupiers: 
 
Impact of the proposed use:  
The building has been used as a church since 2003 and the surrounding industrial 
units continue to operate. It is noted that there have been no recent complaints 
regarding noise or traffic.  A D class use at its proposed relocation to a new first floor 
level would hinder the operation of the neighbouring industrial premises, if they wished 
to operate on a Sunday. At present the adjoining industrial uses choose not to operate 
on a Sunday, but a Preferred industrial Location is intended as an area where a 
business could operate on a Sunday if it wished, because it would not affect the 
amenity of adjoining occupiers.  
 

21



61 
 
 
 
62 
 
63 
 
 
 
 
 
64 
65 

It is noted that two neighbouring properties,The Lodge, Sandgate Trading Estate, 
Sandgate Street and Unit 6,  Sandgate Trading Estate, Sandgate Street have not been 
consulted.  
 
Impact of the proposed extensions: 
 
Given that the neighbouring units are all in industrial use, it is not considered that the 
proposed extensions and other alterations to the building would result in any loss of 
amenity or hinder the operations of the neighbouring units. This assessment includes 
two neighbouring properties, The Lodge, Sandgate Trading Estate, Sandgate Street 
and Unit 6,  Sandgate Trading Estate, Sandgate Street which have not been consulted. 
 
Future occupiers:  
There are concerns that the provision of a place of worship and an industrial use within 
the same building would cause difficulties for both uses, and this is considered further 
in the transport section of this report. The use of the first floor as a church attracting 
large numbers of people and their vehicles to the site is likely to render the industrial 
unit unattractive to future occupiers and could cause lead to vacancy of adjoining units, 
given the location of the site in a preferred industrial location, the proposed industrial 
use must take priority. 
 

 Traffic issues  
 

66 
 
 
67 
 
 
 
 
68 
 
 
 
 
 
 
69 
 
 
 
 
70 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
71 
 
 
 
 
 

The site has a public transport accessibility level (PTAL) of 3 (medium).  Two off-street 
parking spaces are proposed, located at the front of the building. 
 
Saved Policy 2.2 requires applications for community facilities which would generate 
more than 20 vehicle trips at any one time to be accompanied by a transport 
assessment.  Saved Policy 5.2 'Transport impacts' is also relevant, which  seeks to 
ensure that developments do not result in adverse highway conditions.   
 
The church has a congregation of approximately 120 adults plus children that attend 
midweek activities and Sunday services.  The church is also currently used during the 
week as an office base for 7 members of staff (3 full-time and 4 part-time).  A 
breakdown of the church's activities has been submitted with the application, which 
indicates that activities take place every day of the week, generally from between 10am 
to up to 9:30pm. 
 
The Transport Group has raised concerns that limited information has been supplied to 
establish the likely transport implications of the proposal.  A transport assessment has 
been submitted, although it does not go into any detail with regard to the availability of 
parking spaces in the vicinity and no travel plan has been submitted.   
 
The Transport Assessment states that 78% of the 120 strong congregation travel to the 
site by car, which equates to 93 people at any one time. It is considered that this high 
percentage of car use does lead to adverse parking conditions. On a Sunday the road 
is parked up which prevents neigbouring businesses from operating on a Sunday. It 
may be a coincidence that these sites are generally quiet on a Sunday, but local 
business should not be prevented from operating on a Sunday (which in effect they 
would be if this permission is granted) by a use that is not authorised in a PIL.  
 
The Transport Assessment only considers the impact of the church, and not the 
reinstatement of an industrial use into the building. This would introduce more traffic 
into the area, particularly if a B8 use occupied the building, and the provision of roller 
shutters would facilitate the use of larger vehicles. 
 
 

22



72 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
73 
 
 
 
 
74 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
75 
 
 
 
76 
 
 
77 
 
 
 
 
78 

Although both uses would have clearly separate, segregated entrances, besides 
generating additional traffic the proposed mixed-use approach has the potential to 
create vehicle / pedestrian conflicts. There are concerns that large numbers of people 
entering and leaving the building at the same time, in close proximity to vehicles 
servicing the industrial unit, would lead to vehicle / pedestrian conflicts.  This would be 
exacerbated by the fact that Ruby Triangle is often heavily parked, with vehicles parked 
on the triangular raised area in the middle of the road. 
 
The Transport Group has also raised concerns that the proposed pedestrian entrance 
gates would open out onto the highway and whilst ordinarily this could be addressed by 
a condition requiring them to open inwards, they would then open directly onto the 
parking spaces, and it would not be possible to use the gates if the spaces were in use.  
 
Saved Policy 5.6 of the Southwark Plan establishes maximum parking standards, 
which are set out at Appendix 15.  No parking spaces are required for the industrial unit 
as the floor space would be less than 1,000sqm.  In this case the B use class floor 
space would be 613sqm. There is no specific standard for D class uses, as this would 
usually be based on the findings of a transport assessment. Given the area's Public 
Transport Accessibility Level rating of 3, reflecting the area’s medium level of access to 
all forms of public transport, this development is required to provide on site parking in 
order to minimise overspill parking on the road network. The applicants have not 
submitted any quantification of the proposed modal split/trip generation levels, neither 
have the applicants submitted a parking survey. The parking survey should provide 
information on the current on street parking stress levels, the number of vehicles 
generated at peak times of usage (using quantified modal split levels). The parking 
survey should comment on the impact of the development on the surrounding highway 
network. With out a parking survey the transport team can not assess the impact of the 
development on the current on street parking situation.  
 
No information regarding sight-lines and visibility splays has been submitted, although 
were the proposal found to be acceptable in all other respects, this could be addressed 
by way of condition. 
 
Saved Policy 5.3 of the Southwark Plan requires developments to adequately cater for 
pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
The Southwark Plan requires two cycle parking spaces for the B class use, and three 
are shown on the plans.  A further two spaces are shown near to the church entrance 
(although again there is no cycle parking standard for D class uses) and these could be 
secured by condition. 
 
Overall, it is considered that the provision of an industrial unit and a church use in the 
building would result in adverse highway conditions, to the detriment of pedestrian and 
vehicular safety, contrary to saved policies 5.2 and 5.3 of the Southwark Plan and 
Strategic Policy 2 of the Core Strategy 2011. 

  
 Design issues  

 
79 
 
 
 
 
 
80 
 
 

Saved Policies 3.12 ‘Quality in design’ and 3.13 ‘Urban design’ of the Southwark Plan 
seek to ensure that developments achieve high quality architectural and urban design.  
The existing building is functional in appearance, as are its neighbours.  The proposed 
extensions and other external alterations would not result in any loss of visual amenity. 
 
Flood risk 
The site forms part of flood zone 3 therefore a flood risk assessment has been 
submitted with the application which has been reviewed by the Environment Agency 
and found to be acceptable subject to conditions. Were the proposal found to be 

23



 acceptable in all other respects, the conditions would be duly imposed. 
  
 Impact on character and setting of a listed building and/or conservation area  

 
81 None. 
  
 Impact on trees  

 
82 None. 
  
 Planning obligations (S.106 undertaking or agreement)  

 
83 None. 
  
 Sustainable development implications  

 
84 The proposal would conflict with land use policy and the strategic objectives of the 

Core Strategy. It also has the potential to set an undesirable precedent which would 
make it difficult to resist similar applications and uses within a PIL in the future. The 
cumulative impact of granting permission for such a scheme could undermine the 
function and attractiveness of the wider Sandgate estate industrial area and PIL's in 
general. Permitting churches on industrial estates would lower the attractiveness of 
PIL's to business because of the potential conflicts in use between industry and large 
groups of people. Sustainable development needs to support the economy, as well as 
taking into account social and environmental factors. The purpose of a PIL is twofold in 
protecting industrial land supply for economic reasons and to prevent environmental 
problems arising from conflicting land uses. For these reasons the scheme would not 
represent a sustainable form of development and would not be acceptable. 

  
 Other matters  

 
85 
 
 
 
 
86 
 
 
 
 
 
87 

The Applicant Church provides a valuable service to its members and congregation. 
Social organisations such as churches play a role in creating community cohesion and 
improving local quality of life. The church has existed for a number of years and had a 
consistent congregation of 120 members.  
 
It is regretted that the Church has operated without planning permission from this site 
for a number of years. The Church has consistently failed to obtain planning permission 
despite submitting three applications and taking one to appeal. The Council and the 
Planning Inspector have been consistent in refusing those applications for the same 
reasons that this application is recommended for refusal. 
 
It is acknowledged that refusal of this application must in due course have the effect of 
compelling the church to relocate to a site outside of the Preferred Industrial Location. 
The application has not identified any basis as to why an exception to policy should be 
made in respect of this site. 
 

88 Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL): 
S143 of the Localism Act 2011 states the any financial sum that an authority has 
received, will, or could receive in the payment of CIL is a material “local financial 
consideration” in planning decisions. The requirement for Mayoral CIL is a material 
consideration. However, the weight to be attached to a local finance consideration 
remains a matter for the decision-maker. Mayoral CIL is to be used for strategic 
transport improvements in London, primarily Crossrail. 
 
 
 

24



 Conclusion on planning issues  
 

89 The proposal is contrary to saved policies 1.2 'Preferred office and industrial locations', 
5.2 'Transport impacts' and 5.3 'Pedestrians and cyclists'.  As such it is recommended 
that planning permission be refused. 

  
 Community impact statement  

 
90 In line with the Council's Community Impact Statement the impact of this application 

has been assessed as part of the application process with regard to local people in 
respect of their age, disability, faith/religion, gender, race and ethnicity and sexual 
orientation. Consultation with the community has been undertaken as part of the 
application process. 

  
91 a) The impact on local people is set out above. 
  
  
  Consultations 

 
92 Details of consultation and any re-consultation undertaken in respect of this application 

are set out in Appendix 1. 
 

  
 Consultation replies 

 
93 Details of consultation responses received are set out in Appendix 2. 

 
94 Summary of consultation responses: 

None received. 
  
 Human rights implications 

 
95 This planning application engages certain human rights under the Human Rights Act 

2008 (the HRA). The HRA prohibits unlawful interference by public bodies with 
conventions rights. The term ’engage’ simply means that human rights may be affected 
or relevant. 
 

96 This application has the legitimate aim of providing new floor space in D1 use. The 
rights potentially engaged by this application, including the right to manifest ones 
religous beliefs and a fair trial they are not considered to be unlawfully interfered with 
by this proposal. 

  
 SUPPLEMENTARY ADVICE FROM OTHER OFFICERS 

 
 Strategic Director of Communities, Law & Governance  

 
97 N/A 
  
  

 

25



 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Site history file: TP/2360-B 
 
Application file: 11-AP-2521 
 
Southwark Local Development 
Framework  and Development 
Plan Documents 

Deputy Chief 
Executive's 
Department 
160 Tooley Street 
London 
SE1 2TZ 

Planning enquiries telephone:  
020 7525 5403 
Planning enquiries email: 
planning.enquiries@southwark.gov

.uk 
Case officer telephone: 
020 7525 5461 
Council website: 
www.southwark.gov.uk  

 
 

APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Consultation undertaken 
Appendix 2 Consultation responses received 

 
 

AUDIT TRAIL  
 
Lead Officer  Gary Rice, Head of Development Management 

Report Author  Daniel Davies, Planning Officer 

Version  Final 

Dated 20 March 2011 

Key Decision  No. 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET MEMBER  
Officer Title  Comments Sought  Comments included  

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance  

No. No 

Director of Planning Yes Yes 

Strategic Director of Environment and 
Housing 

No. No 

Date final report sent to Constitutional Team 26 March 2012 

 

26



  
APPENDIX 1 

 
Consultation undertaken 

 
 Site notice date:   06/1/2012 

 
 Press notice date:  29/12/2011 

 
 Case officer site visit date: 06/1/2011 

 
 Neighbour consultation letters sent: 15/02/2012 

 
 Two neighbouring properties, The Lodge, Sandgate Trading Estate, Sandgate Street 

and Unit 6,  Sandgate Trading Estate, Sandgate Street have not been consulted. It is 
however considered that in this case sufficient consultation was carried out by the 
display of a site notice and publicising the proposal in the local press.   
 

 Internal services consulted: 
 

 Transport planning group. 
  
  
 Statutory and non-statutory organisations consulted: 

 
 Environment Agency. 
  
  
 Neighbours and local groups consulted: 

 
631-633 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON   SE15 1JU 
41A RUBY TRIANGLE LONDON   SE15 1LE 
7 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
8 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
9 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
2 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
3 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
4 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
5 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
6 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
40-64 SANDGATE STREET LONDON   SE15 1LE 
THE WORKS RUBY TRIANGLE LONDON  SE15 1LG 
1 RUBY TRIANGLE LONDON   SE15 1LG 
8 SANDGATE STREET LONDON   SE15 1LE 
651-653 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON   SE15 1JU 
639 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON   SE15 1JU 
2A RUBY STREET LONDON   SE15 1LL 
641 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON   SE15 1JU 
16 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
17 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
1 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
615-629 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON   SE15 1JU 
10-18 SANDGATE STREET LONDON   SE15 1LE 
20-26 SANDGATE STREET LONDON   SE15 1LE 
593-613 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON   SE15 1LA 
14 RUBY STREET LONDON   SE15 1LL 
10 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
11 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
12 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
13 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
14 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
15 CANAL GROVE LONDON   SE15 1LB 
7-14 RUBY TRIANGLE LONDON   SE15 1LG 
UNIT 2 TO 3 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
FIRST FLOOR FRONT 635 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON  SE15 1JU 
FIRST FLOOR REAR 635 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON  SE15 1JU 
UNIT 10 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 

27



16-18 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON  SE15 1LR 
UNIT 4 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 
UNIT 3 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 
UNIT 20 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON SE15 1LR 
UNIT 22 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON SE15 1LR 
UNIT 24 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON SE15 1LR 
UNIT 10 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 16 TO 18 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON SE15 1LR 
UNIT 1 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 9 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 4 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 1 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 
UNIT 11 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 5 TO 6 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 7 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 
UNIT 2 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 
UNIT 5 SANDGATE TRADING ESTATE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LE 
UNIT 7 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNIT 8 57 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
UNITS 22 AND 28 TO 32 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON SE15 1LR 
UNIT 26 KENT PARK INDUSTRIAL ESTATE RUBY STREET LONDON SE15 1LR 
UNIT 2 28 SANDGATE STREET LONDON  SE15 1LE 
BASEMENT 635 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON  SE15 1JU 
GROUND FLOOR FRONT 635 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON  SE15 1JU 
GROUND FLOOR REAR 635 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON  SE15 1JU 
FIRST FLOOR AND SECOND FLOOR 591 OLD KENT ROAD LONDON  SE15 1LA 
E AND M CAFE CORNER OF RUBY TRIANGLE SANDGATE STREET LONDON SE15 1LG 

 
 Re-consultation: Not required. 

 

28



  
APPENDIX 2 

 
Consultation responses received 

 
 Internal services 

 
 Transport planning group 
  

Transport DC objects to this application as it does not conform with saved Policy 5.6 
Car Parking (iii The impact on overspill parking) for the following reasons. 
 
No exact details have been provided which quantify the modal split levels as 
suggested in the Transport Statement.  
 
A parking survey has not been submitted which takes into account current on street 
parking stress, trip generation/number of associated vehicles, impact of the 
development on the surrounding highway network.  
 
At present the transport team can not be assured that the proposed development will 
not generate a significant negative impact on the performance and safety of the 
surrounding highway network. 
 
Vehicle, Pedestrian & Disabled Access 
Existing and proposed pedestrian access to the site is from Ruby Triangle. Submitted 
plans do not show a dedicated vehicular access to the site   
 
The submitted plans do not show any alterations to the sites vehicular access from the 
highway.  
 
If there were to be any alterations to the developments access any new or altered 
access must have the approval of the Highways Authority, before construction. Please 
include the following informative: 
 
"The planning permission granted includes alterations and amendments to areas of 
the public highway, which will need to be funded by the developer.  Although these 
works are approved in principle by the Highway Authority, no permission is hereby 
granted to carry out these works until all necessary and appropriate design details 
have been submitted and agreed.  You are advised to contact the Principal Engineer, 
Infrastructure Group (020 7525 5509), at least 4 months prior to any works 
commencing on the public highway." 
 
Sightlines/Visibility Splays 
Should there be any changes to the access points of the development the following 
information will be relevant.  
 
Vehicular Visibility Splays 
The Applicant would need to provide pedestrian and vehicular visibility splays, in line 
with a 30 mph road. 
 
Vehicular visibility on a 30 mph road are based on the Sight Stopping Distance and is 
assessed at 43m, as stated in Manual for Streets 7.5. 
 
Pedestrian Visibility Splays 
Pedestrian visibility is a standard 2 metres by 2 metres splay. 
 
In addition to planning consent, any new or altered access must have the approval of 

29



the Highways Authority, before construction. Please include the following informative: 
 
"The planning permission granted includes alterations and amendments to areas of 
the public highway, which will need to be funded by the developer.  Although these 
works are approved in principle by the Highway Authority, no permission is hereby 
granted to carry out these works until all necessary and appropriate design details 
have been submitted and agreed.  You are advised to contact the Principal Engineer, 
Infrastructure Group (020 7525 5509), at least 4 months prior to any works 
commencing on the public highway." 
 
Car, Cycle and Motorcycle Parking 
Cycle storage 
Policy 5.3 (Cycle Storage) 
For the D1 use the Southwark plan has no exact details of the levels of cycle parking 
for this development. The lack of cycle storage associated with the above application 
will not warrant a reason for refusal. However the transport team suggest that cycle 
storage is provided for the levels of cycle usage as outlined in the future modal split 
associated with the development.  
 
Car Parking 
Policy 5.6 (Car Parking) 
The applicant has provided no details of the current on street parking situation at peak 
times of operation. 
The proposed development has no associated off street parking.  
 
This proposal is located in an area with a medium TfL PTAL rating (3) reflecting the 
area’s medium level of access to all forms of public transport. Developments in areas 
with this PTAL rating are required to provide on site parking in order to minimise 
overspill parking on the road network. 
 
The applicants have not submitted any quantification of the proposed modal split/trip 
generation levels, neither have the applicants submitted a parking survey. The parking 
survey should provide information on the current on street parking stress levels, the 
number of vehicles generated at peak times of usage (using quantified modal split 
levels). The parking survey should comment on the impact of the development on the 
surrounding highway network. With out a parking survey the transport team can not 
assess the impact of the development on the current on street parking situation.  
 
Disabled parking 
Not applicable to the above application.  
 
Servicing and refuse vehicle access 
Servicing and refuse collection will be under taken from Ruby Triangle. Due to site 
constraints no off street serving facility's can be provided. Given the nature of the 
proposed development and the central location of the bin stores it is not thought there 
will be: 
 
many service vehicle movements associated with the above application  
refuse vehicles stationary in the highway for an extended period. 
 
Trip Generation/Highway impacts (if any) 
The transport statement has shown stated a modal split, however there is no raw data/ 
surveys to quantify the stated modal split levels. With out the raw data there is no way 
of guaranteeing the level of trip generation associated with the proposed development. 
if the level of trip generation can not be quantified there is no way of ascertaining the 
impact of the development on the surrounding highway network.  
 

30



With out the above information the transport team can not recommend the above 
application for approval as the impact of the development are unknown.  
 
Travel Plan comments (if any) 
The proposed D1 use will need a travel plan the travel plan should take the existing 
modal split and propose reasonable methods which will provide a shift in modal split 
toward sustainable modes of transport.  

  
 Statutory and non-statutory organisations 

 
 Environment Agency 

No objection subject to a number of conditions concerning ground water, 
contaminated land and informative's regarding waste disposal and surface water 
drainage. 

  
  
 Neighbours and local groups 

 
 No letters of support of objection have been received. 
  

 

31



RECOMMENDATION 
 

This document shows the case officer's recommended decision for the application referred to below. 
This document is not a decision notice for this application. 

 
 
Applicant Pastor P. Fadeyi 

Grace Outreach Church 
Reg. Number 11-AP-2521  

Application Type Full Planning Permission    
Recommendation Refuse permission Case 

Number 
TP/2360-B 

 

Draft of Decision Notice 
 

 
Planning Permission was REFUSED for the following development: 
 Erection of extensions at ground and first floor level, window and door alterations to elevations and alterations to 

gates and fencing to front of site in connection with use of ground floor as an industrial unit (Use Class B1, B2 or 
B8) and use of first floor as a unit for place of worship and community facilities (Use Class D1) and change of use 
of part of the ground floor to provide access and emergency egress from proposed first floor for proposed 
community facility. Works include installation of  4 A/C units to roof of first floor extension. 
 

At: 7-14 RUBY TRIANGLE, SANDGATE STREET, LONDON, SE15 1LE 
 
In accordance with application received on 28/07/2011     
 
and Applicant's Drawing Nos. LRT(pl)01,  LRT(pl)02,  LRT(pl)03 Rev A,  LRT(pl)04 Rev A,  LRT(pl)05 Rev A, Planning 
statement, Design and access statement, Transport Assessment, Flood Risk Assessment.  
 
 
Reason for refusal: 

1 The proposed development, by virtue of the provision of a D class use in a preferred industrial location would 
be contrary to the provisions of saved policy 1.2 of the Southwark Plan 2007 'Preferred office and industrial 
locations' which only permits B class uses and sui generis class industrial uses which would be unsuitable in 
residential areas in preferred industrial locations. It would also be contrary to aims of Strategic policy 10 'Jobs 
and Business' of the Core Strategy (2011). The inclusion of a Class D use on this site would set an 
undesirable precedent making it difficult to resist similar applications in the future, the cumulative impact of 
which would be to undermine the character, and harm the function of the industrial area. 
 

2 The proposed development, by virtue of introducing both a B class and a D class use into the building would 
introduce further traffic into the area and would cause harm to and conflict between vehicular and pedestrian 
safety, contrary to saved policies 5.2 'Transport impacts' and 5.3 'Walking and cycling' of the Southwark Plan 
2007and Strategic policy 2 'Sustainable transport' of the Core Strategy (2011). 
 
 

 
 
 
  

32



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page is intentionally blank 
 



  
ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL AGENDA DISTRIBUTION LIST (OPEN) 
MUNICIPAL YEAR 2011-12 
 
NOTE:  Original held by Constitutional Team; all amendments/queries to  
  Tim Murtagh Tel: 020 7525 7187 
 
 
Name No of 

copies 
Name No of 

copies 
 
Rotherhithe Community Council Members 
 
Jeff Hook (Chair) 
Wilma Nelson (Vice chair) 
Columba Blango 
Michael Situ 
Richard Livingstone 
David Hubber 
Paul Noblet 
Catherine McDonald 
Lisa Rajan 
 
 
 
Press 
 
Southwark News 
South London Press 
 
Members of Parliament 
 
Simon Hughes, MP 
 
 
 
Libraries 
Local Studies 
 

 
 
 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
1 
1 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
 
1 
 
 

 
 
Officers 
 
Nicky Bradbury, Legal Services, Second 
Floor Hub 2 
 
Tim Murtagh, 160 Tooley Street, 
Second Floor Hub 4 
 
 
Others 
 
Shahida Nasim, Audit Commission 
 
 
Total: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 1 
 
 
15 
 
 
 
 
 
 1 
 
 
30 

 


	Agenda
	[Comment...]
	Language Needs
	Planning Procedure

	5 Minutes
	6 DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT ITEMS
	Agenda

	6.1 7-14 RUBY TRIANGLE, SANDGATE STREET, LONDON, SE15 1LE
	Report Sandgate Street
	Recommendation

	[Comment...]
	[Comment...]

